SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN MISSOURI BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY AND BARBER
EXAMINERS AND SEW ST. LOUIS, LLC, KENDRA CHRISTIAN, OWNER

Come now Sew St. Louis, LLC, Kerdra Christian, Owner {collectively, “Licensee") and the Missouri
Board of Cosmetology and Barber Examiners (“Boardf’) and enter into this settlement agresment for the purpose
of resolving the question of whether Licensee's cosmetology establishmeant license will bé subjeci to-discipline.

"Pursuant to the terms of § 536.080, RSMo the parties hereto waive the right to a heanng by the
Admmistratlve Hearmg Commission of the State of Mtssoun {"AHG") regarding cause fo dlsmpllne the
Licensee’s license, and, _addltiona!!y, the right to a disciplinary hearing before the Board under § 621.110,
RSMo. ‘

Licensee acknowledges that Licensee understands the various rights and privileges affofde& Licenseé
by law, including the right to a heariné of the charges against Licensee; the right to appear and be represented
by legal counset; the right to have all charges against Licensee proven upon the record by competént and
substantial evidence; the right to cross-examine any witnesses appearing at _the. hearing against Licensee; the
right fo present avidence on Licensee’s own behalf at the hearing; the right to a decision upon the record bya
fair and impartial administrative hearing commissioner concerning the charges pending against Licensee and,
subsequently, the right to a disciplinary hearing before the Board at which fime Licensee may present evidence
in mitigation of discipline; and the right to recover attorney’s fees incurred in defending this action agamst
Llcensee s license. Being aware of these rights provided her by operation of law, Licensee knowingly and '
voluntarily waives each and every one of these rights and freely enters into this settlement agréement and |
agrees to abide by the terms of this document, as they pertain to Licensee. |

Licensee acknowledges that Licensee has received a copy of the inspection réports and-other
documents relied upon by the Board in aetermining there was cause to discipline Licensee's Iicensé, along with

.citaﬂons to law andior regulations the Board believes wés viclated.

For the purpose of ssttling this dispute, Licensee.s.tipulates that the factual allegations contained in this

settlement agreement are true and stipulates with the Board that Licensee’s e_stablishrnent license, number

2012040273, Is subject fo disciplinary action by the Board in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 621

and 329, RSMo.

~

-\ statutory references are to Missouri Revised Statutes 2000, as amended, unless otherwise indicated.




Joint Stipulation of Fact and Conciusions of Law

1. The Missouri Board of Cosmetology and Barber Examiners (“Board”) is an agency of the State-
of _Missouri created and established pursuant to § 329.015, RSMo, for the purpose of executing and enforcing
the provisionsrﬁof Chapters 328 and 329, RSMo. . i

2, Licensee holds a cosmeto!ogy estabhshment license issued by the Board on of about
November 28, 2012, license number 2012040273, for Sew St. Louis, LLG, located at 2172 N Waterford, St.

Louis, Missourl. Licensee’s Missouri establishment license was at all times relevant herein, and is now, current

- and active.

3. On or about March 20, 2015, the Bo-ard conducted a routine inspection of Sew St. Louis, LLC.
Owner Kendra Christian was present during the inspection and Sew St. Louis, LLC was open fof business. The
inspection revealed the following viotations: an unlicensed individual was perforﬁing serviceé., in violaticn of
section 329.030, RSMo, and 20 CSR 2085-10.060 and an uncovered waste receptacle was found in violation of_
;?0 CSR 2085-11.020. On or about March 30, 2015, the Board sent Licensee a violafion notice following the .
March 20, 2015 inspection.
4. On or about April 23, 2015, the Board conducted a follow-up inspection' of Sew St. Louis, LL.C.
Owner Kendra Christian was hot present during tﬁe inspection and Sew St. Louis, LLC was-open for business.
The inspection revealed the follbwing violations: the salon was licensed for three operators and there were four
posted licenses at the time of the inspection, in violation of 20 CSR 2085 10.050; an unficensed individual was
- performing services, in violation of section 329.'030, RSMo, and 20 CSR 2085-10.080 and an uncovered waste
.receptac!e was found in violation of 20 CSR 2085-11.020. On or about May 22, 2015, the Board sent Licensee
a violation notice followin—g th_é April 23, 2015 inspection. -
5. On or about May.zz, 2015, the Board cbndpcted -a follow-up inspection of Sew St. Louis, LLC.
Owner Kendra Chrisﬁan was not present during the inspection and Sew St. Louis, LLC was open for business.
The inspéction revealed no violations. |
8. On or ahout June 26, 2015 the Board conducted a routine inspection of Sew St. Louis, LLC.
Owner Kendra Christian was Not present during the inspection and Sew St. Louis, LLC was open for business.

The inspection revealed the following violations: an unlicensed individual was performing services, in violation of




section 329.030, RSMo, and 20 CSR 2085-10.060. On or about July 1, 2015, the Board sent Licensee a

vioiétion notice following the June 28, 2015 inspaction.

ca 1. Section 329.030, RSMo., states:

it is unlawful for any person in this state to engage in the oceupation of
cosmetology or to operate an establishment or school of cosmetology,
unless such person has first obtained a license as provided by this
chapter.

8. Reguilation 20 CSR 2085-10.050 states, in relevant part:

(1) The minimum biannial fee for a cosmetology establishment
shall license the establishment for up to three (3) operators,
including apprentices, students with temporary permits, or both.
An additional fee is required for each additional operator working
in the establishment. If at any time during the license periad the
number of operators working in the establishment exceeds the

! number of operators for which the establishiment is licensed, itis -
the responsibility of the holder(s} of the establishment license to
submit written notification to the board along with the fee for each
additional operator, - .

8. Regulation 20 CSR 2085-10.080 states, in relevant part:

(1) Pursuant to Chapters 328 and 329, RSMo, no barber or cosmetology
establishment owner, manager, or proprietor shall permit any person who

does not hold a current Missouri barber or cosmetology license to practice

as a barber or cosmetologist in the barber or cosmetologist in the establishment.
No license or permit issued by the board shall be posted in a licensed establishment
unless the license or permit is current and active, and the licensge or permit holder
is an employee of the establishment or holds a current and active renter
establishment license issued by the board.

&

(3) Prohibited Practices Within An Establishment. In a licensed establishment,
only persons properly licensed by the board shall be aliowed fo perform
barbering, hairdressing, manicuring, or esthefician services on any person
within the establishment. The provisions of this section shall apply even if
services are being-provided for no compensation. For purposes of this section,
barbering, hairdressing, manicuring, or esthetician services shall be defined

as follows: . .

(A) ‘Barbering"—engaging in the capacity so as to shave the beard or cut
and dress the hair of any person;

(B} “Esthetician services”—Using mechanical or electrical apparatuses or
appliances, cosmetic preparations, antiseptics, tonics, lotions, or creams,
not to exceed ten percent (10%) phenol, either directly or indirectly, in
any one (1); or any combination, of the following practices: massaging,
cleansing, stimulating, manipulating, exercising, beautifying, or similar
waork upon the scalp, face, neck, ears, arms, hands, bust, torso, legs, or

3




feet and removing superfluous hair by means other than electric needte
or any other means of arching or tinting eyebrows or tinting eyelashes
of any person;’ ) )

(C) “Hairdressing™—Arranging, dressing, curling, singeing, waving, permanent
waving, cleansing, cutting, bleaching, tinting, coloring, or stmitar work upon the
hair of any person by any means; or removing superfluous hair from the body
of.any person by means other than electricity, or any other means of arching
or tinting eyebrows or tinting eyelashes, Hairdressing also includes any person
who either with the person’s hands or with mechanical or electrical apparatuses

. or appliances, or by the use of cosmetic preparations, antiseptics, tonics, lotions,
or creams engages for compensation in any one (1) or any combination of the
following: massaging, cleaning, stimulating, manipulating, exercising, beautifying,
or similar work upon the scaip, face, neck, arms, or bust; and

(D) "Manicuring” —~Cutfing, trimming, polishing, coloring, tinting, cleaning, or
otherwise beautifying a person’s fingemails, applying artificial fingernails,
massaging, cleaning a person’s hands and arms; pedicuring, which includes
cutting, trimming, polishing, coloring, tinting, cleaning, or otherwise beautifying

a person’s toenalls, applying artificial toenails, massaging, or cleaning a person’s
legs and feet.

- 10, Regulation 20 CSR 2085-11.020 states, in relevant part:

A2 Sanitaﬁon-Requirementé.

(1) Covered Waste Receptacles. Any cosmetology establishment
or school shall be required to have covered waste receptacles for
the disposal of hair and nail clippings. Hair and nail clippings shall
be swept up and disposed of in a covered waste receptacle after
gach patron[]

11.  As a result of the violations, as described above in paragraphs 3 through 8, in violation of the
regulations contained in paragraphs & through 10, Licens_ee violated lawful regulations adopted pursuant to
chapter 328, RSMa, and failed to properly guard again_st contagious, Infections or communicable diseases of
the spread thereof for which the Board has cause to take disciplinar); action against Licensee's establishment,
license.

12, Cause exists for the Board to take disciplinary action againét Licensee's establishment license

under § 328.140.2(6) and (15) RS.MD, which states in pertinent part:




The board may cause a complaint to be filed with the administrative
hearing commission as provided by chapter 621, RSMo, against any
holder of any cetificate of registration or authority, permit or license
required by this chapter or any person who has failed fo.renew or has
surrendered the person's certificate of registration or authority, permit or
license for any one or any combination of the following causes:

{6) Violation of, or assisting or enabling any person to violate,
any provision of this chapter, or of any lawful rule or regulation
adopted plrsuant to this chapter; ' .

(15) Failure or refusal to properly guard against contagious,
infectious or communicable diseases or the spread thereof.

Joint Agreed Disciplinary Order.
Based upon the foregoing, the parties mutually agree and stipulate that the following shall cohstitute the
_disciplinary order enfered by the Board in this matter L_mder the authority of § 621.045, ]'\;SMO; -

13. The terms of discipline shall. inciude th.at Liceﬁsee’s establishment license be plac_ed on
PROBATION for a period of one {1) year ("disciplinary period”). During Licensee’s probation, Licensee shaill be
entitled to offer and engage in the practice of cosmetoiogy under Chapter 329, RSMo, provided Licensee
adheres to all of the terms of his Settlernent Agreement. 7

1 SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS

A.  Licensee shall correct alf sanitation and licensing viclations from the March 20, 2015, April 23, 2015,
and June 26, 2015 inspections within 30 days of the date of execution of this Agreement.

Il GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

A Licensee shall meet with the Board or its representatives at such times and places as required by
the Board after no'ﬁﬁcat‘ton of a required meeting. ’

B.  Licensee shall submit reports to the Missouri Board of Cosmetoiogy and Barber Examiners, Post
Office Box 1062, Jefferson City, Missouri 65102, stafing truthfully whether Licensee has compliied
with all the terms and conditions of this Settlement Agreement by no later than.January 1 and July 1
during each year of the disciplinary period. The first report shall be due January 1, 2016.

C. Licensee shall keep the Board apprised of Licensee’s current home and work atdresses and
talephone numbers. Licensee shall inform the Board within ten days of any change of home or
worl address and home or work telephone number.

D. Licensee shall comply with all provisions of the Chapter 329, RSMo; all applicable federal anci state
drug iaws, Tules, and regulations; and all federal and state criminal laws. “State” here Includes the
state of Missouri and all other states and territories of the United States.




E.  During the disciplinary period, Licensee shall timely renew Licensee’s licenses and timely pay all
fess required far ]:censmg and comply with all other board requirements necessary {o malntatn
Licensee’s licenses in a current and active state.

~F.  fatany time during the disciplinary period, Licensee removes L:censee from the state of Missouri,
ceases to be currently licensed under provisions of Chapter 329, RSMo, or fails to advise the Board
of Licensee's current place of business and residence, the time of Licensee’s absence, unlicensed -

status, or unknown whereabouts shall not be deemed or taken as any part of the time of discipline
so imposed in accordance with § 329.140, RSMo.

G.  During the dlsc:[plmary pariod, Licensee shall accept and comply with unannounced wszts from the
- Board's representatives to monitor Licensee's compliance with the terms and condltlons of this

Setifement Agreement.

H.  if Licensee fails to comply with the terms of this Setilement Agreement, in any respect, the Board, in
accordance with § 324.042, RSMa, may impose additional discipfine when it finds after hearing
that a licensee, registrant, or permittee has violated any dlsctpimary terms prewously imposed
or agreed to pursuant to settliement. The board, commission, or committee may impose as
additional discipline any discipline it wouid be authorized to impose in an initial disciplinary

hearing.

L. This Settiement Agreement does not bind the Board or restrict the remedies available to it
concerning any other violation of Chapter 329, RSMo, by Licensee not specifically mentioned in this

document.

14. The pérties to this Agreement understand that the Missouri Board of Cosmetology and Barber
and Examiners will maintain this Agreement as an open record of the Board as provided in Chapters 329, 610
and 324, RSMo. ‘

15. The terms of this settiement agreement are contractual, legafly enforceable, and binding, not
merely recital. Except as otherwise providéd he}ein, neither this settiement agréement nor any of its provisions
may be changed, waived, discharged, or terminated, except by an instrument in writing signed by the party
against whom the enforcement of the change, waivér, discharge, or termination is sought.

16._ Licensee, together with Licensee’s heirs and assigns, and Licensee’s attorneys, do hereby™
waive, release, acquit and forever discnérge the Board, its respactive members and any of its ernployees,
agents, or attorneys, including any former Board members, employees, agetits, and attornsys; of, or from, any
{fiability, claim, actions, causes of action, fees, costs and expenses, and compensation, incliding but not limited )
to, any claims for attorney’s fees and expenses, including any claims pursuant to § 636.087, RSMo, or any
claim arising under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, which may be based upon, arise out of, or relate to any of the mattersv
raised.in this case, iis séttlenaent, ar f;'ofn the negofiation or execution of this setllement agreement. The parties

acknowledge that this paragraph is severable from the remaining portions of this setilement agreement in that it




survives in perpetuity even in the event that any court of law deems this setflement agreement or any pottion
thereof to be void or unenforceable. .

17. If no contested case has beén jiled agéinst Licgnsee, Lic_ensee hé;s the r§ght, gither at the time
the settlement agreement is sighed by all parties or w;ithin fifteen days thereafter, to- submit the adreement fo the
Administrative Hearing Qommission for determination that the facts agreed to.by the parties to the setflement
agreemgnt consfituie grounds for d'enyingj or disciplining the licenses of the licensee. [f Licensee desires the
Administrative Hearing Commission to review this Agreement, Licensee may submit this request fo!
Administrative Hearing Cbmmission, Truman State Office Building, Room 640, 301 W, High Street, P.O.
Box 1557, Jefferson City, Missouri 65101, " - ‘

18. If Licensee has reguested review, Licensee and Board jointly requgst that the Administrative
Hearing Commission determine whether the facts set forth herein are grounds for .dl_scip!ining Licensee's
licenses and issue findings of fact and conclusions of law stating that the facts agreed to by the partie's are
grounds for disciplining 'Licensee’s licenses, Effective the date the Administrative Hearing Commission

deterrines that the agreement sets forth cause for disciplining Licensee’s licenses, the agreed upon discipline
; .

set forth herein shail go into effect. .

LICENSEE BOARD

l A %%&QM

Executive Director .
Missouri Board of Cosmetology and Barber Examiners

Date \@H 8F l 5 : . Date \Q-JI \5 \lD\?

St/ Louis, LLC
Kendrd Christian, Owner




